CRYSTAL LAKE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 1, 2012
HELD AT THE CRYSTAL LAKE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Haydéh30 p.m. On roll call, members Batastini,
Esposito, Gavle, Goss, Greenman, Jouron, LembKlez&tek, and Hayden were present.

Mr. Hayden asked those in attendance to rise téhga?ledge of Allegiance. He led those in attenda
in the Pledge.

Latika Bhide and Elizabeth Maxwell, both Plannersre present from Staff.

Mr. Hayden stated that this meeting is being tskedinow as well as being recorded for future plelyba
on the City’s cable station.

APPROVE MINUTES OF THE JULY 9, 2012 SPECIAL PLANNIN G AND ZONING

COMMISSION MEETING

Mr. Goss moved to approve the minutes from the 9uB012 Special Planning and Zoning Commission
meeting as presented. Mr. Greenman seconded therm@®n roll call, members Batastini, Gavle,
Goss, Greenman, and Skluzacek voted aye. Membesskio, Jouron, Lembke, and Hayden abstained.
Motion passed.

2012-50 ROGERS — 68 Carmella D PUBLIC HEARING
Special Use Permit for a detached accessory steugteater than 600 square feet to allow a pool and
deck at 758 square-feet.

Mr. Hayden stated that the sign has been postedsakdl the surrounding property owners have been
notified and the Certificate of Publication is retfile. Mr. Hayden waived the reading of the lega
notice without objection.

Brad and Michele Rogers were present to reprebeitpetition. Mr. Rogers said they have a 24-foot
above ground pool and they want to add a deckwil ibe easier to get in and out of the pool.

There was no one in the public who wished to contraarthis petition. The public portion was closed
at this time.

Mr. Gavle asked about the safety requirements fava of this size. He is concerned that small
children will have access to the pool. Mr. Roga®l they do have a fence around their yard. Mrs.
Rogers added that there will be a gate at thesspéithe deck.

Mr. Batastini asked if the petitioners had any @ns with the conditions listed in the report. Mr.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
AUGUST 1, 2012
PAGE 2

Rogers said no.

Mr. Greenman asked if there was a problem witrs#ttback requirements. Ms. Maxwell said no. Mr.
Greenman said the Findings of Fact have been met.

Mr. Goss asked if the electric line would needeadélocated. Mr. Rogers said the Building Division
sent an inspector to check and he said there waenfbct.

Mr. Jouron moved to approve the Special Use Pdond detached accessory structure greater than 600
square feet to allow a pool and deck at 758 sdfeateat 68 Carmella Drive with the following
conditions:

1. Approved plan, to reflect staff and advisorydgoeomments, as approved by the City Council:
A. Application (Rogers, received 07/16/12)
B. Plat of Survey/Site Plan (Unnamed, undated,iveded7/16/12)

2. No structure or attachment shall be construsstdeen the deck or pool and the principal residenc
The pool and deck must remain at least 6 feet tt@principal structure.

3. The petitioner shall comply with all of the régunents of the Engineering and Building, and
Planning and Economic Development Departments.

Mr. Esposito seconded the motion. On roll callp@mbers voted aye. Motion passed.

2012-51 JENKINS - 627 Leonard Pkwy- PUBLIC HEARING
Special Use Permit, Variation to allow storage densras part of the roof replacement for the garage.

Mr. Hayden stated that the sign has been postedsakdl the surrounding property owners have been
notified and the Certificate of Publication is Iretfile. Mr. Hayden waived the reading of the lega
notice without objection.

Ed Brandwein, contactor, was present to represenpetition. Mr. Brandwein said the owners of the
property would like to add a second floor to theaga which is to be used for storage. He saicketiser
no basement in the home so there is very littleagi® space.

Mr. Hayden asked if the footprint of the garage ldaemain the same. Mr. Brandwein said yes. They
will have a pull down staircase inside the garagths second floor can be accessed safely. Mrdétay
asked if the petitioners had any concerns withcthmedlitions listed in the staff report. Mr. Brandwe

said there was no problem with the conditions.

There was no one in the public who wished to contraarthis petition. The public portion was closed
at this time.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
AUGUST 1, 2012
PAGE 3

Mr. Goss asked if the garage needed to be reirdaicee they were not replacing the garage. Mr.
Brandwein said yes. Mr. Goss said he has a problgmthe request. There is not much of a setback
from the roadway and the garages in the area lo@a@lstory. This addition will block light, aind the
view of the lake from the neighbors. He would prehe garage be moved back 15 feet. Mr. Brandwein
said it would be up to the owners if they wantedhtove the garage. Mr. Goss feels it would be bdtte

it were moved.

Mr. Jouron asked if not having a basement for g@ould be considered a hardship. Mr. Hayden said
a hardship must be caused by the ordinance.

Mr. Esposito said recently there was another lgegage addition approved for storage and it is not
being used for that. He asked if there would bepnmbing to that area. Mr. Brandwein said not. M
Esposito said the City has been burned lately atitler garages and feels this lot is very tight.

Mr. Greenman asked how the sizes of the dormers determined. Mr. Brandwein said the architect
mirrored the structure of the home. Mr. Greennsled if the dormers were reduced what would that
do to the size of the storage area. Mr. Brandwelreves it would be reduced but that change would

need to be approved by the property owners.

Mr. Gavle said he replaced his garage a few yegosaad recalls there is a maximum height. Ms. 8hid
said the height is measured to the midpoint oftioé. This garage measures at 14 feet and the
maximum allowed is 15 feet. Mr. Gavle agrees thatdormers should be smaller to reduce the mass of
the building.

Mr. Hayden said he is torn. Ms. Bhide said theagaris within a few feet of the right of way. Mr.
Hayden asked what is open behind the house. MasBai said it is open to the lake with a hugekbac
yard. He feels it would be better to move the gataack. Mr. Hayden asked if the garage would be
taken down. Mr. Brandwein said no because theggataelf is in good shape. Mr. Hayden said he
would prefer the garage to be moved back but tlatidvbe expensive to do. Ms. Bhide said the garage
is in the watershed area and it should be notddrbaing it would increase the impervious surface.

Mr. Greenman said he would prefer that the vanator the dormers be eliminated. Mr. Batastindsai
that would reduce the storage area for the peétsmnHe is concerned about the windows not being
covered and the neighbors being about to looktimtcstorage area which may be unsightly.

Mr. Batastini moved to approve the Special Use Reoallow a detached accessory structure greater
than 600 square feet to allow the garage to beoappately 720 square feet; Variation from Article 7
Nonconformities, to allow the existing nonconforyrnitietached garage) to expand; and Variation from
Article 10, Definitions, to allow the dormers to Wweler than 40% of the length of the side elevabn
627 Leonard Parkway with the following conditions:



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
AUGUST 1, 2012
PAGE 4

1. Approved plans, reflecting staff and advisorgfoborecommendations, as approved by the City
Council:

A. Application, received 7-16-2012

B. Addition Drawings, Kang Architects, received G-12

2. The following variations are hereby granted:
A. Variation from Article 7, Nonconformities, tolalv the existing nonconformities (detached
garage) to expand.
B. Variation from Article 10, Definitions, to allothe dormers to be wider than 40% of the length
of the side elevation.

3. A Special Use Permit to allow a detached acecgssnucture greater than 600 square feet to allow
the garage to be approximately 720 square feavorstories;

4. No habitable second-story is permitted withia ¢larage. The attic area must be used solely for
storage.

5. The petitioner shall address all of the reviemments and requirements of the Engineering and
Building, Fire Rescue, Police, Public Works, andnhing and Economic Development
Departments.

6. Blinds or screening shall be used in the windows the dormers to screen the storage area as
well as to keep lights from the storage area fromhsning into adjacent properties.

Mr. Jouron seconded the motion. On roll call, memtBatastini, Gavle, Jouron, Lembke, Skluzacek,
and Hayden voted aye. Members Esposito, GossGagehman voted no. Motion passed.

Mr. Greenman said his no vote was because hé&éltariation for the dormers is excessive. Mr.<xasd
he voted no because of the building mass and migh&o close to the right of way. Mr. Hayden sad h
would have preferred the garage to be moved bac#ido’'t want to increase the impervious surface.

2012-49 CVS — CROSSROADS — 1305 Randall Rd PUBLIC HEARING
Final PUD Amendment/SUP to allow additional wafjrekge and an electronic message center component
to the existing freestanding sign.

Mr. Hayden stated that the sign has been postedsakdl the surrounding property owners have been
notified and the Certificate of Publication is Iretfile. Mr. Hayden waived the reading of the lega
notice without objection.

Dan Brooks with Midwest Signs was present to regrethe petition. Mr. Brooks said CVS is
requesting to change their current monument sigotwimas a changeable copy portion to an electronic



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
AUGUST 1, 2012
PAGE 5

message center. They are also requesting additiatiasignage. Mr. Brooks said the total square
footage of the signs proposed and current willdss kthan what is allowed by ordinance.

There was no one in the public who wished to contraarthis petition. The public portion was closed
at this time.

Mr. Batastini is ok with the copy portion to theapped out. He likes the way the building looks and
feels the additional wall signs are excessive. yMweuld cheapen the building. Mr. Batastini adtieat
as far as the lighting on the building is concerrielcan understand it during the constructiomiotit
after.

Mr. Gavle said he is concerned with the amounigrissrequested. He believes the current signs are
sufficient.

Mr. Brooks said CVS, Walgreens, etc. spends aflotaney on marketing research and they have
determined that people don’t know what they hawalalble. Mr. Batastini said if the City would ao
it, the companies would have a sign for everythivey have in the store. He doesn’t want flash and
splash.

Mr. Greenman agreed. He said the Findings of féache additional signs are not met such as they a
not necessary or desirable and they will be unisigie said when CVS originally came in they were
given 173 square feet of signage for that PUD. s€lelditional wall signs do not make sense.

Mr. Skluzacek said he has no problem with the EMf@ and agrees that the additional wall signs are
not needed. He also would prefer the externatihgrshould be turned off.

Mr. Esposito said they fought hard for the wayltkéding looks. He said the signs in the windowes a
sufficient and they look cheap. Mr. Brooks saidl\s@ns are designed to get your attention and the
window signs do not serve that purpose. Mr. Edpasiid this is a known product. People around the
country know what they have in their stores. Hd #a City has spent many hours discussing this
building so it looks the way it does.

Mrs. Lembke said she is ok with both the additiomall signs and the EMC. She would like the light
band removed.

Mr. Jouron said this is a PUD and it was a give take on both CVS and the City's part. He does not
have a problem with EMC portion of the sign butddbe other signs are too much.

Mr. Goss said six pharmacy signs are too much aed/&Valgreens, CVS, Right Aide, and Wal-Mart
have photo areas. He can't approve any of thesigiis but ok with the EMC. He added that CVS
needs to strictly follow what was approved as falighting is concerned. He said the light baneldse
to be completely removed not just remove the bneasebulbs.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
AUGUST 1, 2012
PAGE 6

Mr. Hayden asked what the EMC would be used for. Brlooks said it would be used for weekly
specials and possibly Amber Alerts. Mr. Haydengasted that it be used to promote what the wall
signs that are being proposed would have said.Bkroks said there are some communities that
previously limited sign sizes are now changingrtbedinances back to what they were previously. He
said they have found that the signs are too smdllpgople can'’t find the businesses.

Mr. Goss said he would have preferred for a reptasiee from CVS be at the meeting so they can hear
this discussion.

Mr. Hayden said the additional wall signs are re#ded since they can advertise those uses on their
EMC sign along with the specials of the week. Ke avants the light band completely removed from
the building.

There was a discussion regarding turning the sifgfiam 11 p.m. to 7 a.m. if the pharmacy is noeop

It was the consensus of the members that if tikebsas is open, whether the pharmacy is open ¢r not
the sign should be on. Ms. Bhide said if an EMghss across from residential, the sign is to be of
between those hours. Mr. Goss said if the stoopés the sign should be on and it should be dimawed
night.

Mr. Batastini moved to approve the Final Planned Davelopment Amendment to allow-additionatwall
sighage-an@n electronic message center component to thérexiseestanding sign; and Special Use
Permit and variations to add an electronic messagter component to the existing freestanding f&ign
CVS Pharmacy at 1305 Randall Road with the follgrgonditions:

1. Approved plan, to reflect staff and advisorydgoeomments, as approved by the City Council:
A. Development Application, received 7-11-12
B. Sign Details, received 7-11-12

2. A Final Planned Unit Development Amendment, $gddse Permit and variations to allow the
proposed changes to the-watddreestanding signage are hereby approved.

3. The EMC component must be equipped with bottogrammed dimming sequence as well as an
additional overriding mechanical photocell thatustl the brightness of the display to the ambigint |

at all times of day. Such programming and mechaegpaipment shall be set so that the EMC, at night
or in overcast conditions, will be no more than 40Rthe daytime brightness level.

4. The EMC is not required to be extinguished betwiae hours of 11:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. as long as
thestore pharmaeys open to customers 24 hours. The sign must tiegexshed between the hours of
11:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. if the 24-hour operatibthestore pharmacyceases.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
AUGUST 1, 2012
PAGE 7

5. The message area of an EMC must be illuminat@ehiie or amber incandescent lamps, LED (light-
emitting diode) or magnetic discs, not red as psegdo

6. The EMC unit must have the “flash” feature dlsdtand messages shall have a 5-minute “hold” time.

7. The messages displayed on the EMC can onliti@anfom one message to another by either fading
or dissolving to black with another message appgammediately thereafter, without movement or
other transition effects between messages.

8. Messages must be static and not reflect moverfiasiting, scrolling or changes in shape or size o
messages or portions of messages. Streaming dive/bime video are not permitted.

9. If the EMC unit is equipped to override commakrohessages for emergency situations such as an
“Amber Alert” or other such acute public emergescithe owner of the EMC unit is requested to
cooperate with the City of Crystal Lake in ordeatlmw the City to exercise its override authority

10. The EMC sign must be set in a manner that dmay will turn dark in case of a malfunction.

11. The petitioner shall address any commentsaqdrements from the Engineering and Building, Fire
Rescue, Police, Public Works, and Planning and &oion Development Departments.

12. Exterior lighting around the perimeter of the tkuilding if not approved shall be completely
removed and extinguished immediately.

Mr. Greenman seconded the motion. On roll caliiiers Batastini, Esposito, Gavle, Goss, Greenman,
Jouron, Skluzacek, and Hayden voted aye. Mrs. kembted no. Motion passed.

Mrs. Lembke voted no because she felt the additwah signage should be approved.
REPORT FROM PLANNING

- Alleyway Annexation
- Honda Northwest et al — 4911, 4901, 6509 Northuissy. Annexation

Ms. Rentzsch said the next meeting on August 1%ban rescheduled to Monday August 20, 2012.
She reviewed the petitions for the next PZC meeting

COMMENTS FROM THE COMMISSION
Mr. Hayden said he misses the PIQ maps that used part of their reports.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:45 p.m.



